## **Overview & Scrutiny**

## **Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission**

All Members of the Governance & Resources Scrutiny Commission are requested to attend the meeting of the Commission to be held as follows:

Wednesday, 20th April, 2016

7.00 pm

Room 102, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA

Tim Shields Chief Executive, London Borough of Hackney

Contact:

Members: Cllr Deniz Oguzkanli, Cllr Will Brett, Cllr Laura Bunt,

Cllr Rebecca Rennison and Cllr Nick Sharman

#### Agenda

#### ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Urgent Items / Order of Business
- 3 Declarations of Interest
- 4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 18)
- 5 Elections Update (Pages 19 24)
- 6 Income Generation
- 7 Governance and Resources Scrutiny Review Delivering Public Services Whole Place, Whole System Approach Executive Response
- 8 Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission (Pages 25 34) 2015/16 Work Programme
  - Work programme for 2016/17 discussion



## **Access and Information**

## **Getting to the Town Hall**

For a map of how to find the Town Hall, please visit the council's website <a href="http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm">http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm</a> or contact the Overview and Scrutiny Officer using the details provided on the front cover of this agenda.

## **Accessibility**

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the Town Hall.

Induction loop facilities are available in the Assembly Halls and the Council Chamber. Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the main Town Hall entrance.

## **Further Information about the Commission**

If you would like any more information about the Scrutiny Commission, including the membership details, meeting dates and previous reviews, please visit the website or use this QR Code (accessible via phone or tablet 'app')





## **Public Involvement and Recording**

Scrutiny meetings are held in public, rather than being public meetings. This means that whilst residents and press are welcome to attend, they can only ask questions at the discretion of the Chair. For further information relating to public access to information, please see Part 4 of the council's constitution, available at <a href="http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm">http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm</a> or by contacting Governance Services (020 8356 3503)

## Rights of Press and Public to Report on Meetings

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting.

Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the Council's Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting.

The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from which all recording must take place at a meeting.

The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear and record the meeting. If those intending to record a meeting require any other reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so.

The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting. Anyone acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be filmed.

All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the meeting. The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they have objections to being visually recorded. Those visually recording a meeting are asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed. Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease recording or in their exclusion from the meeting.

If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt information is under consideration.

Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted.





| Governance & Resources Scrutiny Commission          | Item No |
|---|---------|
| 20 <sup>th</sup> April 2016                         | 1       |
| Minutes of the previous meeting and Matters Arising | 4       |

## **OUTLINE**

Attached are the draft minutes for the meeting on 16<sup>th</sup> March 2016.

## **ACTION**

The Commission is requested to agree the minutes and note any matters arising.





London Borough of Hackney Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission Municipal Year 2015/16 Date of Meeting Wednesday, 16th March, 2016 Minutes of the proceedings of the Governance & Resources Scrutiny Commission held at Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street. London E8 1EA

Chair Councillor Rebecca Rennison

Councillors in Attendance Cllr Deniz Oguzkanli, Cllr Laura Bunt and

**Cllr Nick Sharman** 

Apologies: Cllr Will Brett

Co-optees

Officers In Attendance

Other People in Attendance

Ed Hammond (Director Local Accountability), Ben Lucas (Founding Director and Managing Director), Councillor Ann Munn, Councillor Peter Snell, Jessica Studdert (Deputy Director), Michael Vidal (Healthwatch Hackney Board Member) and Councillor Carole Williams

**Members of the Public** 

**Tracey Anderson** 

**Officer Contact:** 2020 8356 3312

## Councillor Rebecca Rennison in the Chair

### 1 Apologies for Absence

- 1.1 Apologies for absence from Councillor Will Brett, from the Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission.
- 1.2 Apologies for absence from Cllrs: Ben Hayhurst, Rosemary Sales and Sharon Patrick from the Health in Hackney Scrutiny Commission.
- 1.3 Apologies for lateness from Cllr Laura Bunt.
- 1.4 Apologies for absence from guests and officers: Professor Tony Travers, London School of Economics and Political Science, Councillor Geoff Taylor, Cabinet Member Finance and Ian Williams, Corporate Director Finance and Resources from London Borough of Hackney (LBH).

## 2 Urgent Items / Order of Business

- 2.1 The Commission was informed Cllr Rick Muir had resigned as Ward Councillor. The Commission was informed the Vice Chair Cllr Rennison would chair the meeting.
- 2.2 The Commission noted their thanks to Cllr Muir for his dedication and hard work in his time as Ward Councillor and Chair of the Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission.

#### 3 Declarations of Interest

3.1 None.

## 4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

4.1 Minutes of the meeting held on 22<sup>th</sup> February 2016 were agreed.

| RESOLVED | Minutes were approved. |
|----------|------------------------|
|          |                        |

- 4.2 Matters Arising
- 4.2.1 Action page 10 The Corporate Director Finance and Resources to provide an update on council tax collection figures to the Commission.

This is scheduled for update April 2016.

4.2.2 Action page 13 - The Corporate Director Finance and Resources to arrange for the Members of G&R to visit the new temporary accommodation used by the Council.

This is being arranged.

#### 5 Devolution - The Prospects for Hackney

- 5.1 The Chair welcomed Ben Lucas from Metro Dynamics, Ed Hammond from Centre for Public Scrutiny and Jessica Studdert from New Local Government Network to the meeting.
- 5.2 The Chair informed the meeting questions were submitted in advance to the speakers. The Chair invited each guest to provide their opening statement in response to the questions.
  - What are the most promising areas for further devolution of budgets and powers from central government to London?
  - What areas of service/expenditure should be devolved and to what governance level within London?

- How will the relationship between the GLA and the 32 boroughs need to be recalibrated in order to make devolved arrangements work?
- Is there a need for more consistent arrangements to be agreed at the sub regional pan borough level in London?
- How can we ensure that devolution is supported by strong governance and public participation?
- 5.3 Jessica Studdert, Deputy Director New Local Government Network opening statement.
- 5.3.1 Devolution is not an end process but rather should be viewed as a means to an end, with the aim of creating better value for the way resources are spent.
- 5.3.2 Devolution will help to create incentives around spend so it can aligned in a more appropriate way.
- 5.3.3 It was highlighted that public spend in London is in silos. The question devolution asks is can London take this spend and use it in a different way to deliver a more effective impact for the local community.
- 5.3.4 The most promising areas for devolution are the areas where there is spend on quite complex need. Devolution asks if London can take that funding and spend it more effectively.
- 5.3.5 Employment support was highlighted as an area whereby there is a lot of spend for very limited results. For more complex problems that require support the question asked is can spend be devolved to enable services to be integrated services so that services do not work in a different way to each other but blend better together.
- 5.3.6 One of the key challenges cited by businesses is the skills shortage in London. However, London has a large number of people unemployed. Therefore the question is can London devolve spend so that it incentives providers to provide the skills provision that London actually needs. Also can structures be devolved that will facilitate better discussion with employers to enable them to articulate more effectively the skills needed, to create an effective system that providers are also supported to feed in to. The current funding system for skills does not work particularly well. Can it be better aligned to produce better outcomes for skills?
- 5.3.7 Health spend is another key area. In London there is a huge pressure on the NHS. Currently the policy is to cut back on public health budgets, but this is not sensible because it can lead to more spend elsewhere within the system. The principle behind the Manchester devolution on health spend is to create new structures and new accountability for that spend. Their aim is to create more community based provision, reducing the current pressure on hospitals whilst maintaining the current level of spend or reducing it. It was pointed out this will be hard to do simultaneously. Manchester's goal for health spend is taking a long term view to improve sustainability and to have an impact on key areas of spend.

- 5.3.8 The Mayor for Manchester will have more powers over spend for the Manchester City area than the Mayor of London. London is 3 times bigger than the Manchester area Manchester has 10 boroughs London has 32 and the leaders there have a direct link to the Mayor. London boroughs do not have a direct link to the Mayor of London. Manchester's model described as 'first amongst equals', this is different to the set up in London. It was pointed out London has some collaboration through London Councils but for devolution it was thought there would need to be a formal structure; possibly by statutory agreement to enable regional powers to be devolved. It was highlighted that if councils became responsible for the hard end of employment support (the work programme); there would need to be multiple borough arrangements to take on the level of risk this type of devolution would present.
- 5.3.9 Therefore in some areas for devolution there would be borough level arrangements and for some there would need to be multiple borough collaboration to take on the risk.
- 5.4 Ed Hammond, Director Local Accountability Centre for Public Scrutiny
- 5.4.1 The aim of devolution is to secure local services for people that achieve tangible and positive outcomes; making a difference to peoples' lives. The view across the country is that devolution can achieve this change to local services.
- 5.4.2 Therefore the outcomes councils wish to achieve from devolution will be critical. It is important that councils clearly define the outcome they wish to achieve from this process. It is important not to get caught up in the processes of devolution.
- 5.4.3 It was highlighted how where councils do not have this understanding, the devolution negotiations could end up stagnating. Hampershire was cited as an example where they had reached the point of a deal and then it dissolved. The reason for this is was believed to be linked to not having a clear understanding of what they wished to achieve. The requirement for devolution is having a Mayor. The area grouping did not want a Mayor and they could not agree on a set of outcomes that would compensate for having a Mayor. They did not identify from the outset collective priorities and outcomes that were worth accepting an elected Mayor. It is critical for councils to have a clear sense of the outcomes they wish to achieve when considering devolution.
- 5.4.4 In response to question 1, which asked about the most promising areas for further devolution of budgets and powers from central government to London. The CfPS officer advised the areas set out in the London Proposition document. Two possible additions areas could be education and social security. However it was thought these two areas were unlikely to be devolved given the budget announcement that day and that the welfare reform changes were at implementation stage. There would be huge opportunity if these two additional areas were open to devolution too.
- 5.4.5 In response to question 2, which asked about what areas of service/expenditure should be devolved and to what governance level within London. The Commission was advised it should be any area councils can get access to. The key was to push devolution to its lowest form. Although it was

- acknowledged more work needs to be done before reaching the point of devolving to local communities.
- 5.4.6 In response to question 3 which asks how the relationship between the London boroughs and the GLA would need to be recalibrated. This relationship in his opinion would need to change quite significantly. It has not yet been demonstrated that London can work collectively. Although boroughs have a sense of what they want to achieve with devolution. Key to this will be the relationship between the GLA, boroughs and regional relationships. An additional impact to this was thought to be the characters of the individual leaders of the various partners.
- 5.4.7 In response to question 4 which asks is there more consistent arrangements that can be agreed, the answer is yes, but risk is a big issue. Sovereignty working (Sovereignty working can be described as one organisation holding the power of the partnership over all other organisations) brings opportunities but it also brings risk around delivery of services and connection with communities. Consistency, understanding and sharing the risk will be important.
- 5.4.8 Every so often there are proposals about creating super boroughs. This brings the potential for pooling resources and sharing risk. This has been demonstrated in other parts of England.
- 5.4.9 If Hackney wants all the decisions to be made by its organisations sovereignty working would need to be considered.
- 5.4.10 In response to question 5 which asks how we can ensure devolution has strong governance. It was explained this was critical to get right. Governance gives a sense of order and the sequence in which to do things, as well as a framework.
- 5.4.11 There will need to be two different sets of governance arrangements. Interim and permanent. Both types of governance will need to be flexible and capable of evolving. Devolution has been evolving over the past 15 years and will continue to evolve. Therefore governance arrangements will need to do the same.
- 5.4.12 The framework will be critical. This helps to set out how decisions will be made, how policy will be developed, how performance will be monitored and how the public will be involved in all this. All these points should be considered and agreed. After councils have agreed their governance requirements, outcomes for local people and how they will work together. Then you move onto agreeing the structures and processes at the very end and the formal arrangements can be implemented.
- 5.5 **Ben Lucas**, Founding Director and Managing Director Metro Dynamics
- 5.5.1 The context of devolution is very different to decentralisation. Devolution is about power and where power is exercised. Britain is in an era of quite significant change; witnessing the Welsh, Scottish and Northern Irish devolution and the establishment of a London Mayor.

- 5.5.2 Increasingly there has been a push against the empire model of governance we have in the UK. The reason is thought to be linked to the rest of the country not benefiting from this operating model.
- 5.5.3 One of the biggest dynamics for devolution is the announcements from the Prime Minister to devolve powers to English cities. In his view this was a response to a long campaign by Scotland and many British cities (core cities). Expressing a desire to have more economic and political power at a city level.
- 5.5.4 In the last 10 years there has been an increase in the population numbers in all the main cities across the UK. This highlights that demographically and economically something quite significant is taking place across the UKs cities. The political structures are catching up to these changes.
- 5.5.5 Specifically in relation to London, it is thought that the rest of the country has fallen out of love with London. It was commented that for the General Election it was noticeable that no political party launched their campaign from London. Also that no national politician seemed to be interested in advancing anything that is of benefit to London. There is a view that London has shaped a political economy to suit its own needs. This view is further implied following the crash of the banking system in London; which was deemed to be the cause of austerity that has affected the whole country.
- 5.5.6 This has obscured the fact that there are pockets of deprivation and inequality in London that are greater than the rest of the country. There are health challenges in London (in terms of childhood obesity) that are greater than any of the challenges in the rest of Britain. There are housing challenges that are greater in London than the rest of Britain. However it is thought that these challenges are not widely understood nationally. One of the obstacles for devolution in London is the need to convincingly shape a response to the challenges faced by London in relation to inequalities, health and housing. The prospect that 50% of London's children will be obese and that London's housing is becoming increasingly unaffordable. Presents London's councils and London's politicians with the task of finding a response to these challenges. The best way to advance London's case is to collaborate. This is likely to be across political party lines and across borough boundaries. The response will require a degree of imagination. This in his view has enabled Manchester to negotiate the deal it has.
- 5.5.7 The challenge for London is at what level it should negotiate devolution and the form of community engagement it needs to address challenges faced by locations e.g. estates. This may be across boroughs.
- 5.5.8 The speaker from Metro Dynamics highlighted two areas in England Liverpool and London Borough of Lambeth, both of which were participating in the rate-capping rebellion in the 1980s. It was highlighted that in Liverpool people were aware of the challenges, in London people were unaware or uninterested. This did not impact all boroughs in London. The question for Councils is what identity would make the most sense for them to collaborate. Also they should consider how to engage at a local level.
- 5.5.9 It was highlighted that some of the most significant challenges have been shaped by local government. The example was given of local government

leading the campaign about sugar, which has highlighted a major public health issue and led to a sugar tax. This demonstrates how at its best local government can be truly innovative. This international evidence shows that with the right kind of public goals the public can mobilised. Politicians must be prepared to collaborate across boundaries to make that happen.

- 5.6 Questions, Answers and Discussions
- (i) Members commented from the opening statements devolution came across as decentralisation. Thus being more of a management driven model. In their view devolution is about re-engaging people in the process and changing their behaviour. Therefore devolution should aim to be more than just improving services (although that might be an outcome). In Members opinion officers alone cannot change the behaviour of people. The citizens need to be fully engaged in the process to achieve this direction of travel.
- (ii) Members pointed out the challenges were how they would organise themselves at a local level to draw people into the process and then secondly provide answers to their questions which are likely to be at a different level of governance. They want to ensure that the public voice is registered, heard and alters services at different levels of government.
- (iii) Members enquired how they could draw people into the process. They wanted to know when the process of engagement with citizens should begin and then the organisational structures.
- (iv) Members referred to the public service reform agenda and the drivers for modernising and improving services. Members commented that devolution will impact on services that are increasingly privatised / market driven services (social care / health / employment support). There are drivers towards more local commissioning and spending powers. Arguably it is said some providers of local provision are national companies. This is a complex balance to manage (national delivery but commissioned locally). What is the implication for citizens and users in relation to accountability if things go wrong and where does the risk lie in this very complex environment.

In response to the questions NLGN commented.

When we talk about providing better services for people. More explicitly this is about designing services around people, closer to people and having services working closer together. Having services which are more responsive to needs. The idea of pooling budgets locally will mean involving people much more in the design of services.

Re-engaging people in the process is important and although not explicit this is very much part of the devolution process.

Upon reflection devolution in Scotland was a technocratic response to a ground swell of public appetite for power and identity. English devolution is different. This is tightly driven by the Government's own agenda which is moving at pace. There has not been much scope for innovation and building in public

engagement to find out what people would want or what they might want from their public services that they do not currently receive.

This devolution was billed as a devolution revolution. Revolution by nature tends to be disruptive but this devolution is not disruptive. If people are to be engaged it should be expected that things will not go as planned or expected.

This devolution is not starting with a blank piece of paper but from a fiscal challenge.

The priority for the London Proposition is to make sure it builds into the process and structures reaching out to people so they understand. The reason for this is the average person is not interested if their services are integrated. They want to know if their tax money is being spent effectively, are services easy to navigate and understand; and if things go wrong is it obvious who they go to. Often the communication of changes is not in language that makes it easy for citizens to understand. To make it of real value to people the information needs to be in plain English not technocratic language.

It is definitely key to re-engage people in the process but the onus will be on councils to face outwards and make that case too.

In terms of commissioning particularly in the case of employment support the prime provider model is not necessarily very effective or well integrated into other services that are conducive to supporting people. If services were commissioned locally by smaller local providers, we would see a system that has much more diversity of provision, working in a different or specialised way; beneficial to service provision.

In response to the questions CfPS commented.

Public engagement is part of devolution. However, while negotiation is an inherent part of the process, the government restricts any details of negotiations being shared. Therefore the opportunity to engage the public can only be at the very the start of the process. This is the time to have conversations with local people and to ask how they view the area and their lives developing in the future. Councils can use this information at the heart of the narrative for the bids to Government to have a strong negotiation position. This opportunity has not been taken, primarily because of the speed of this devolution. The Government's timescales did not allow councils to conduct real public engagement over the summer of 2015.

It was pointed out the public in England are not interested in devolution (the structures or processes) they are interested in improving their lives and the area they live in. If people have a strong sense of place it is easier to build a dialogue. In London this is particularly challenging because most people would describe themselves as a Londoners not as borough residents.

The concept of devolution means that at some points some areas are going to lose out in the short term. Industry will move to certain places. This process will involve give and take. The Government is looking at this in a managerial sense (decentralisation) and the agreements being entered into look more like partnership agreements with a local area.

London has the benefit of having a predefined geography to work in. The challenge will be how that geography works out at a regional and sub-regional level.

In relation to commissioning he added that when service failure happens it will be local government that people turn to. It was highlighted that local government is picking up and retaining the risk.

In response to the questions Metro Dynamics commented.

The Government's view of public engagement is that the public has consistently come up with the wrong answers. For example the public came up with the wrong answer by not voting for elected Mayors. In his view the questions that were asked were the wrong questions and these did not arouse interest in the process. This has led the government to approach this in a technocratic managerial process of decentralisation. Introducing a democratic element at the end of the devolution process.

It was pointed out one risk could be that we end up with metro Mayors that are similar to PCCs.

The challenge for the cities that have already advanced in the process pf devolution is for local politicians to have the confidence to open up the process. If councils wish to achieve significant social change then they have to engage people in the process.

The reason the desired health or education outcomes have not been achieved is because it does not just rely on the institutions. It relies on the way we mobilise social capacity, citizens and communities. For people to make changes to their own lives they need to feel more empowered. Addressing the long term public health challenges will not come through hospitals but by engaging people in social behaviour to effect change.

In terms of commissioning, it is inevitable that even as commissioning structures change, the same people continue to deliver local services. There is no doubt that if services are localised they would not become inferior. The more fundamental question is what can be done differently. It is about how people feel they are connected to the economic opportunity, rather than just the provision of courses for the skills set. It was explained that for the people who live in Derby the majority work in Nottingham. Although the people would identify with the areas they live in, they did not feel concerned about crossing the boundary to work in Nottingham because the economies were interlinked. This is more complex for London because people do not think about twice about crossing borough boundaries for work.

(v) Members raised concern about areas that cannot take advantage of the opportunities (e.g. seaside towns) that devolution provides. Members pointed out these economies will be unable to advance like other parts of the country. Members enquired what would happen to these areas if there are no incentives for businesses to relocate there or they do not become part of a devolution grouping. (vi) Members raised concern about the possible negative consequences of devolution. It was pointed out Hackney has a further education college that cannot provide people with the required skills needed for the growing local economy (Tech City ) and the council has no power to change this. Members highlighted the council was pleased to get public health but after it was transferred the budget suffered cuts. Members commented the public have raised concerns that the transfer of NHS services and budget will enable the Government to not fund the NHS sufficiently; this will lead to privatisation. The health devolution pilot was of interest to Hackney because the borough has well run local NHS services including their own local hospital. However the council is facing criticism that this is helping to break up the NHS. Members enquired how they should respond to people who say they are making easy with the health pilot for the Government (in the future) to privatise the NHS because it is being dismantled. How can they provide assurance in relation to the possible negative consequences?

In response to the questions CfPS commented.

Yes, there are some areas that have not decided what grouping they want to be part of for devolution. The Government could come along and reorganise them if they feel there is a risk some will not choose their own group. Therefore there is the potential some councils may not be included.

For councils facing funding challenges devolution is seen as part of the solution to this crisis. By having more power, responsibility and the ability to grow their economy.

It was pointed out the Government will not completely decentralise and relinquish control, the devolution promises come with conditions attached.

The devolution deals are looking more like partnership agreements with the area doing something and government doing something. Having agreed outcomes more than wholesale devolution of power. The risks need to be recognised as they are there.

In terms of health, the organisation is national but the delivery of service is local. The people operating at a local level will be the same people but the organisations may change. In the current system it is easy to pass the responsibility to someone else. Devolution will give a single accountability structure.

In response to the questions Metro Dynamics commented.

Yes, there will be places that will feel left behind by the changes e.g. seaside towns. How they are structured will be quite difficult. There is the argument that those places viewed as being left behind were already feeling a decline in their economy. Devolution is not creating this divide, it was already there.

In his view the unitary structure of governance would be the best option. It would make sense to have large county deals.

There is an overly earnest attempt to create answers to every issue across the whole system. However if there are areas that want to take on devolved powers and they have engaged civic citizens who want to take on these powers and responsibilities, they should be allowed to proceed and not held back. It was highlighted the case for letting areas proceed is clear, the uncertainty is what might happen if government tries to impose models on areas where it does not fit. This may be quite problematic.

In terms of the risks of devolutions. One of the comments not mentioned in the meeting is that devolution is being used to mask the funding cuts. It was highlighted that local government is facing cuts to funding regardless. The question is should councils be taking on additional powers in order to have some influence, in tandem to their funding being cut and their capacity being undermined.

The Government's inconsistency in relation to devolution was highlighted. The example was given of the Government's announcement about changes to the threshold of business rates at the same times as it gives local government more control over the receipt of business rates income. This undermines the principles for giving local government the income from business rates in the first place. On the one hand they have given councils control over business rates but at the same time they have raised the threshold for businesses which has removed a category of businesses from paying the business rates. This shows an inconsistent message from government.

In relation to further education, this is the first area it would make sense to localise. There may be the case for councils to collaborate for FE because the provision does cross borough boundaries.

On the challenges with health, it goes back to its creation and that the system was too national from the beginning. This undermines the Government's ability to shape the health economy. Addressing health outcomes and inequalities requires democratically elected politicians to shape the debate with their community about the health challenges.

In response to these questions NLGN commented:

Previously the view from central government was local government was not equipped to do this. Devolution has been driven by Government but largely by England's core cities. Areas like Greater Manchester see devolution as being driven by them. They have worked out their figures to demonstrate lower costs to the government if they were given control over their budgets.

Devolution primarily focused on city growth to add maximum growth to the local economy. This vision has spread and expanded to other areas who desire the same. Devolution bids have been put together based on this economic growth framework.

Everyone thinks devolution should be devolved to their tier.

Asking areas to come forward with their own views is a recipe for chaos. The Government needs to take a firm lead on what they want and what areas should do. Otherwise the system will be chaotic.

NLGN agreed with the comments made by Metro Dynamics that the Government should let areas proceed who are ready to advance. Enabling them to innovative, share best practice and demonstrate the outcomes. This will help to incentivise innovation.

Devolution needs to look different in all areas and councils need powers to tackle the problems in their area. It does not need to be a one size fits all approach.

One of the challenges is the hidden constraints and cuts that simultaneously come with the new powers.

Local government needs to get better at demonstrating the value of devolution and the value of local spend, by creating better business cases that demonstrate efficiency.

In relation to the NHS, this is a very national and high profile organisation that has a very local provision. For the health devolution process local government needs to bring its transparency and democratic accountability. Local government should bring this culture and ethos into the NHS and be bolder about the benefits it brings.

In the future we will see better local accountability from devolution so people can see where responsibility lies.

- (vii) Members enquired about the relationship between City Hall and local authorities and how this will work in London. They also enquired if the systems would need to be the same across London.
- (viii) Member pointed out London Boroughs and the GLA have different structures Mayoral and Leader and Cabinet. Member queried if more powers would be given to the Mayor of London to get involved in local issues and if this would force local authorities to be governed by one system or another.
- (ix) A Member enquired about the one size fits all approach and queried the value of devolution to London boroughs.
- (x) Members queried if local government was the intended recipient or beneficiary of devolution.
- (xi) A member of the public enquired who would have the power to delegate powers. There was a need for devolution agreements to be very specific about who was responsible for what. He highlighted that conversation about this had not commenced.
- (xii) A member of the public commented devolution needs to take place sooner or later, but how it happens in London and at what level is the question.
- (xiii) Members enquired about the role of a Public Accounts Committees (PAC) in local government.

In response to the questions Metro Dynamics commented.

In terms of whether London should have devolution or the kind of devolution. This stems from two drivers, 1) what happens to the UK as a whole; 2) pressure from the northern cities to acquire economic growth too because they feel their cities are losing out. The question to London is do their councils need devolution enough to push for it. Devolution will not happen unless councils and councillors push hard for it to happen. London needs to consider the social and economic outcomes it wants to achieve from devolution, the challenges they cannot currently address and the needs of its citizens. This will help to determine the devolution requirements and at what level it should be.

There are issues about the relationship between the boroughs and the GLA. The relationship between Boroughs, the Mayor of London and the GLA needs to be clarified. The form will follow function when the vision, strategy and overarching priorities are identified that councils want devolution to address.

There is big pressure by northern cities because their cities feel they are missing out on economic growth.

For London there should be more of a debate about the kind of future citizens see. There is a large amount of regeneration and building taking place. How does this impact schools etc. For the people living in the place how much do they feel they can shape the debate about the future of the place.

In response to the questions NLGN commented.

The Northern Power House started creating their own agenda and vision after looking at London. They wanted to create the same as London and have a directly elected Mayor.

In the future as the number of elected Mayors increases, it would be good for the Mayors to connect and lobby for devolution and articulate the purpose of devolution.

It was pointed out The Mayor of London has less power than his/her peers across the globe. London is a global city and in big global cities the Mayor typically has more power than the Mayor of London.

The question for London is how much finance it can raise. There are big opportunities for London in relation to fiscal devolution. It was noted London will be first to have control of business rate receipts. From the Finance Commission there is consensus that property tax devolution needs to happen too. There needs to be much more consensus on this nationally and London needs to work with other cities to make the case for that.

To date London has benefited from the Mayor of London's relationship with Government. In May when the Mayor of London changes, London may need to make a strong business case for what it needs. The onus is on London to develop what it wants and this will be an iterative process.

In relation to the query about if local government is the intended recipient. It was highlighted local government has had a complicated relationship with

central government. Local government needs to change and it is changing as a result of the devolution agenda. Under the previous Government, local government was administrating the receipt of grants and filling in a performance monitoring framework. There was no ask for innovation or different approaches from different councils. Central government is now asking local government to take a different role. The onus is on local government to work in different ways and to be more entrepreneurial, to shape the agenda. It will not be beneficial for councils to sit back and wait for devolution to happen. Local government should be proactive.

This will lead to a closer working relationship between boroughs and the Mayor of London. London can look at other examples such as Sheffield and Manchester where the leaders have a formal relationship with the Mayor. Leaders will need to take a stronger role.

In response to the questions CfPS commented.

This agenda will be a bit of a challenge for councils to approach under committee arrangements. However it may not lead to more councils adopting the mayoral model.

In relation to the sub regional delegation of powers by the Mayor of London. No details could be added to how this might happen but it is likely to involve changes to legislation. It was recognised for devolution the Mayor of London will need to work with local partners and there will be sectioning of powers. The leaders of the respective boroughs will need to work closer together with the Mayor to deliver the agenda. The impact of this on formal accountability is uncertain because the Mayor will have formal decision making.

CfPS thought that areas may wish to set up local PACs. The primary aim of a PAC is to hold public services to account and investigate spend. These would reflect the House of Commons PAC and would look very tightly at spend.

In terms of who would be accountable to that body, CfPS defined this to be a person / persons or organisation that is responsible for the provision of public services. A public service is defined as largely or wholly being funded by public funds or services of a public nature. It is anticipated that the number of organisations that this criteria would capture is quite broad.

It was anticipated that the powers for local PACs would be provided by legislation and that areas would be given the option to establish one. It is not certain if the current Government would set these out in legislation. Therefore to set up a PAC it would need agreement between councils and local partners. A PAC would not be the council's public accounts committee but the local area's public accounts committee. This would not be a fixture of the council but set up outside the council's structure. It was highlighted that for a number of organisations that would fit this criteria, they have different accountability structures, primarily central government. It is likely to be difficult to get them to agree to PAC type arrangements.

London would need to identify the level for accountability, where the PAC should sit (regional or sub regional) and there would need to be a link between local scrutiny and GLA scrutiny.

Wednesday, 16th March, 2016

Local PACs only makes sense if you have two things, fiscal devolution and a full understanding of the devolution context.

PACs are one option. Presented by CfPS as a possible type of arrangements. It was recognised agreement from partners would need to be acquired to establish them. They could be established under orders as sub-regional or pan London as part of the GLA structure. This was one type of structural solution.

The Chair thanked the guests for their attendance.

## 6 Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission - 2015/16 Work Programme

6.1 The work programme for G&R on pages 27 – 33 of the agenda was noted for information.

## 7 Any Other Business

7.1 None.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00 - 9.10 pm





| Governance & Resources Scrutiny Commission | Item No |
|--|---------|
| 20 <sup>th</sup> April 2016                | 5       |
| Elections Update                           |         |

## **Outline**

Since the 2015 UK Parliamentary Election, a full review of how the election was organised and delivered has taken place. The lessons learnt and the feedback received has been analysed and changes put in place to deal with the shortcomings identified in the review.

In November 2015 the Commission received an update about this review and requested for an update about preparations for the 2016 London Mayoral Elections. Following this update the Commission was informed the following would be implemented:

- a new IT system
- a new team and management structure for the Elections Team.

## **Action**

The Commission is asked to note the update and ask questions.



#### **IER and GLA Update**

#### **Progress**

Since the 2015 UK Parliamentary Election, a full review of how the election was organised and delivered has taken place. The lessons learnt and the feedback received has been analysed and changes put in place to deal with the shortcomings identified in the review.

Both the former Elections Manager, Deputy Manager and a Senior Elections Officer have since left the authority and a new management structure is being implemented. Currently an experienced Interim Head of Electoral Services is in post to coordinate the successful delivery of the GLA elections and ensure that the Electoral Register is robust and the provisions of Individual Registration are fully implemented.

A new Elections Manager started on 4 April and the posts of Electoral Registration Manager and Principal Elections Officer have also been recruited to.

#### **Annual Canvas**

The Annual Canvass took place between August and mid November 2015 when every household was sent a registration form to sign and return. New residents at the address had the opportunity to register online or by phone. Reminders were sent to everyone who did not respond to the first letter. A door to door canvass was used to collect any forms that were not returned from a known address.

Due to the large number of non-responding properties canvassers were given smaller rounds than in previous years but we doubled the number of canvasser's used. In addition we undertook a data mining exercise to identify residents who paid Council Tax and who were not registered to vote., this identified 11, 000 residents who were not on the electoral register. They have now been sent registration forms, which will be followed up with a reminder and a personal visit if they do not respond.

Electors who had not responded to a canvass for the previous two years and who were not individually registered were taken off the new register when published on 1 December. Around 30,000 electors were removed. Letters were sent to all these electors advising them that they had been taken off the Electoral Register. A high proportion of these letters have been returned as "not known at this address".

A registration form is now sent out with every new Council Tax account opened to capture new residents.

#### **IER**

The Individual Elector Registration implementation plan includes proposals to continue the canvass of non-responding properties throughout the year. It also includes proposals to visit all 6th forms and colleges to encourage the registration of 18 year olds. It identifies areas of low registration and outlines strategies to encourage hard to reach groups to register. This implementation plan is kept under regular review and greater use is also to be made of internal records to identify residents who are not registered.

Plans are in hand to collaborate with external groups to promote greater voter registration.

#### GLA Election - 5 May 2016

Planning for this election is well underway and feedback received following the 2015 Parliamentary Election has been reviewed.

A monthly Project Board chaired by the Returning Officer monitors the delivery plans and seeks assurance that election planning is on time, in accordance with legislation and Electoral Commission guidance and complies with any GLA Directions.

Staff allocation to polling stations has been completed and is in accordance with the Electoral Commissions ratios which relate to the number of electors assigned to a polling station. Appointment letters have been dispatched and an appropriate number of reserve staff identified. This is a fluid situation as staff regularly drop out and alternative staff need to be appointed and trained. Staff training dates have also been confirmed. All buildings to be used as polling stations have been established. Three buildings, in two wards used in May 2015 are not available for the GLA elections. The affected Ward Councillors have been advised.

Polling Stations have been inspected and issues identified in May last year have been reviewed and resolved.

An e- count will be held on Friday 6 May at Alexandra Place and staff attending the count have completed an online training module and a day's practical training.

Regular meetings are held with the Constituency Returning Officer and the Borough Returning Officers of the North East Constituencies.

Ongoing briefings take place with the GLA and London Elects.

We are complying with the Constituency Project plan and maintaining a risk register. All Directions have also been complied with.

### By Elections

Plans are in place to deal with two by elections which, if contested will be held on 5 May.

#### EU Referendum – 23 June 2016

The government has announced that the Referendum for the UK's future membership of the EU will take place on 23 June.

The counting of the votes for the Referendum will take place over night into 24 June at the Britannia Leisure Centre.

Polling stations and the Britannia Leisure Centre have been booked and staff are in the process of being appointed.

The Notice of the Referendum will be published on 17 May.

The question to be posed at the Referendum has been agreed.

Plans are in place to process the expected increase in applications to go onto the Electoral Register and postal voting prior to the Referendum.

Due to the anticipated high turnout for the Referendum the number of polling stations used will be increased. A greater number of polling stations will be allocated as double rather than single with a smaller ratio of electors allocated to them, this will allow a faster turn around and should reduce potential waiting time for electors.

It is also planned to increase the number of Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks used.





| Governance & Resources Scrutiny Commission                            | Item No |
|---|---------|
| 20 <sup>th</sup> April 2016   | R       |
| Governance & Resources Scrutiny Commission Work Programme for 2015/16 |         |

## **Outline**

Attached is the work programme for the Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission for 2015/16. Please note this is a working document and regularly revised and updated.

The Commission is asked to consider and suggest items for the work programme in relation to a review and one off discussion items for the 2016/17 work programme.

## **Action**

The Commission is asked to note the work programme in 2015/16. Consider and make suggestions for a review / discussion items for the 2016/17 work programme.



# **Overview & Scrutiny**

# **Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission** *Rolling Work Programme June 2015 – April 2016*

All meetings take pace at 7.00 pm in Hackney Town Hall unless stated otherwise on the agenda. This rolling work programme report is updated and published on the agenda for each meeting of the Commission.

| Dates                             | Proposed Item   | Directorate and officer contact                                     | Comment and Action   |
|-----------------------------------|---|---|--|
| Wed 10 <sup>th</sup> June<br>2015 | Election of Chair and Vice Chair  | Chief Executive's   | First meeting of newly elected Commission.   |
| Papers deadline: Mon 1st<br>June  | London Living Wage Executive Response   | Chief Executive's   | Cabinet Member for Finance response to letter of reference following the outcome of G&R's short inquiry  |
|                                   | Delivering Public Services –<br>Whole Place, Whole System<br>Approach<br>Evidence session   | Early Intervention Foundation Donna Molloy – Head of Implementation | Presentation by Donna Molloy from Early Intervention Foundation about prevention and spending on late intervention.  |
|                                   | Delivering Public Services – Whole Place, Whole System Approach  • Health in Hackney Scrutiny Commission – Depression and Anxiety Report  • The 21 <sup>st</sup> Century Public Servant | Chief Executive's   | Review the findings from the Health in Hackney Scrutiny Commission Depression and Anxiety Review.  Review of the finding from a review conducted by Dr Catherine Needham and Catherine Mangan on |

| Dates  | Proposed Item   | Directorate and officer contact    | Comment and Action   |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|
|  |   |                                    | the changing public service workforce.   |
|  | Delivering Public Services – Whole Place, Whole System Approach                           | Chief Executive's                  | Discussion based on the findings from the qualitative research report by BDRC highlighting the customers' journey for the long term unemployed in Hackney. |
|  | <ul> <li>Long Term Unemployed People<br/>in Hackney – The Customer<br/>Journey</li> </ul> |                                    |  |
|  | Work Programme Discussion   | Chief Executive's                  | To agree a review topic and topics for one-off items for the year.   |
| Mon 8 July 2015 Papers deadline: Fri 26 June | London Borough of Hackney 2015<br>Elections   | Chief Executive's (Tim Shields)    | Report on the 2015 Elections - voters registration and postal votes  |
|  | Devolution  | Chief Executive's<br>(Tim Shields) | Discussion about the opportunities devolution could provide for Hackney  |
|  | Corporate Cross Cutting Programmes  | Chief Executive's<br>(Tim Shields) | Update on the progress of the Corporate Plan 2015-18 cross cutting programmes  |

| Dates                                    | Proposed Item  | Directorate and officer contact                    | Comment and Action  |
|--|--|--|---|
|  |  |  |   |
| Tues 8 Sept 2015 Papers deadline: Thu 27 | Finance update   | Finance and Resources (lan Williams)               | Briefing on the budget scrutiny process and update on General Fund savings 2011/12-2013/14. |
| August                                   | Complaints Service Annual report   | Chief Executive's (Bruce Devile)                   | Annual report of the Council's complaints service   |
|  |  |  |   |
| Thurs 29 Oct 2015                        | HR Workforce Strategy  | Legal, HR and Regulatory<br>Services               | Update on HR Strategy and workforce support during organisational change.                   |
| Papers deadline: Mon 19 Oct              |  | (Gifty Edila)                                      |   |
|  | Delivering Public Services –<br>Whole Place, Whole System<br>Approach<br>Draft Report and<br>Recommendation Discussion | Chief Executive's (Tracey Anderson)                | Discuss the report and recommendations  |
| Wed 11 Nov 2015                          | Hackney Homes Transformation   | Chief Executive's                                  | Update on the HH transition   |
| Papers deadline: Fri 30 Oct              | Update<br>s deadline: Fri 30 Oct   | Paul Horobin and Cllr<br>Glanville                 |   |
|  | Update on Complaints Quality<br>Checks   | Chief Executive's<br>Directorate<br>(Bruce Devile) |   |

| Dates                       | Proposed Item   | Directorate and officer contact                           | Comment and Action   |
|-----------------------------|---|---|--|
|                             | Update on Elections Review  | Chief Executive's<br>Directorate<br>(Tim Shields)         | Update report on May 2015 Elections review   |
|                             | Update on Council Restructure   | Chief Executive's<br>Directorate<br>(Tim Shields)         | Briefing about the Council's senior management restructure   |
|                             | Update from Communications and Consultation Team                                      | Chief Executive's<br>Directorate<br>(Polly Cziok)         | Discussion about the Council's communication plan for local residents to engage, involve and communicate the challenges facing the Council |
|                             | Delivering Public Services –<br>Whole Place, Whole System<br>Approach<br>Draft Report | Chief Executive's<br>Directorate<br>(Tracey Anderson)     | Agree the draft report for sign-off  |
| Mon 14 Dec 2015             | Finance update  | Finance & Resources (lan Williams)                        | Update on Comprehensive Spending Review and Local Government Financial settlement  |
| Papers deadline: Tues 1 Dec | ICT Review Recommendation<br>Update   | Finance and Resources (Ian Williams and Christine Peacock | Update on review recommendations and ICT Strategy  |

| Dates  | Proposed Item   | Directorate and officer contact                 | Comment and Action  |
|--|---|---|---|
| Tues 18 Jan 2016  Papers deadline: Thurs 7 <sup>th</sup> | Budget Scrutiny Task Group<br>Review  | Councillors from Budget<br>Scrutiny Task Groups | Discussion about budget scrutiny task groups looking at what worked well and how can it be improved.  |
| Jan  | Devolution Review   | Chief Executive's<br>(Tracey Anderson)          | Discussion about draft proposals for a review on devolution   |
| Mar. 22 Fab. 2040  | Dudget and Finance undete   | Finance 9 December                              | Pudget and Einance undete en legal government   |
| Mon 22 Feb 2016  Papers deadline: Wed 10 Feb             | Budget and Finance update   | Finance & Resources (Ian Williams)              | Budget and Finance update on local government settlement and Council Budget for 2015/16.  |
|  | Cabinet Question Time with Cllr<br>Taylor (Cabinet Member for<br>Finance) TBC | Cllr Taylor – Cabinet<br>Member Finance         | Cabinet Question Time is now carried out by individual Commissions. Cllr Taylor has lead responsibility for revenues and benefits, audit, procurement, pensions, and customer services.   |
| Tues 16 Mar 2016  Papers deadline: Fri 4 Mar             | Devolution Review   | Various attendees                               | Evidence session – background session to introduce the emerging devolution landscape for London and local government. Input from:  LSE (Prof Tony Travers)  London Councils  Centre for Public Scrutiny  Metro Dynamics.  New Local Government Network. |

| Dates  | Proposed Item   | Directorate and officer contact                    | Comment and Action   |
|--|---|--|--|
| G&R Members<br>invited to HiH<br>Meeting     | Health and Social Care Devolution Pilot update            | Health and Social Care Pilot Partner Organisations | Briefing from the Devolution Lead Officer on devolution pilot and progress covering:  Interim governance arrangements Consultation and engagement. |
| Mon 11 Apr 2016                              |   |  |  |
| Papers deadline: 31 <sup>st</sup> March 2016 |   |  |  |
| Tues 20 Apr 2016                             | Work programme for 2016/17                                |  | Discussion on topics for work programme for  |
| Papers deadline: Fri 8 April                 | discussion  |  | 2016/17.   |
| Papers deadline: Fri 8 April                 | Elections Preparations for May 2016                       | Chief Executive's Directorate                      | Update from Elections Service on their preparations for the Elections in May 2016.   |
|  |   | Tim Shields  |  |
|  | Delivering Public Services –<br>Whole Place, Whole System | Chief Executive's Directorate                      | Executive Response to review report.   |
|  | Approach  | (Tracey Anderson)                                  |  |
|  | Income Generation   | Finance and Resources lan Williams                 | Overview about income generation work for each service area across the Council.  |

#### To Note:

• HiH Members are invited to attend the G&R Devolution Meeting on 16<sup>th</sup> March 2016.

## Discussion items to be rescheduled for the new municipal year

- Public Sector Workforce Discussion about future public sector service provision and service delivery models to explore the implications for the workforce and workforce requirements.
- Devolution Review Employment and Skills evidence session
- ICT Transformation Projects Update.

